
Democratic Services Contact Officer: Victoria Wallace 03450 450 500 democratic.services@scambs.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1 November 2019 

 

To: Chairman – Councillor Anna Bradnam 
 Vice-Chairman – Councillor Eileen Wilson 
 Members of the Licensing Committee – Councillors Dr. Shrobona Bhattacharya, 

Nigel Cathcart, Graham Cone, Clare Delderfield, Peter Fane, Jose Hales, 
Geoff Harvey, Steve Hunt, Peter McDonald, Deborah Roberts, Heather Williams 
and Alex Malyon 

Quorum: 4 
 
Substitutes: Councillors Bill Handley, Sue Ellington, Nick Wright, Bunty Waters, Mark Howell, 

Ruth Betson, Gavin Clayton, Nick Sample and Dr. Douglas de Lacey 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are invited to attend the next meeting of LICENSING COMMITTEE, which will be held in 
MONKFIELD ROOM - SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE HALL at South Cambridgeshire Hall on 
MONDAY, 11 NOVEMBER 2019 at 10.00 a.m. 
 
Members are respectfully reminded that when substituting on committees, subcommittees, and 
outside or joint bodies, Democratic Services must be advised of the substitution in advance of 
the meeting.  It is not possible to accept a substitute once the meeting has started.  Council 
Standing Order 4.3 refers. 
 
Yours faithfully 
Liz Watts 
Chief Executive 
 

The Council is committed to improving, for all members of the 
community, access to its agendas and minutes.  We try to take all 
circumstances into account but, if you have any specific needs, 

please let us know, and we will do what we can to help you. 
 

 
AGENDA 

PAGES 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 To receive apologies for absence from committee members.   
   
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  1 - 2 
 To authorise the Chairman to sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 17 

October 2018. 
 

  
 
 

 

 

 

South Cambridgeshire Hall 

Cambourne Business Park 

Cambourne 

Cambridge 

CB23 6EA 

t: 03450 450 500 

f: 01954 713149 

www.scambs.gov.uk 



4. HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE LICENSING POLICY AND 
CONDITIONS 

 3 - 10 

 For the committee to consider and make recommendations to full Council 
on an updated Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy and 
Conditions.  
 
The appendices to the report will follow.    

 

   



 GUIDANCE NOTES FOR VISITORS TO SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE HALL 
 Notes to help those people visiting the South Cambridgeshire District Council offices 

 
While we try to make sure that you stay safe when visiting South Cambridgeshire Hall, you also have a 
responsibility for your own safety, and that of others. 
 
Security 

When attending meetings in non-public areas of the Council offices you must report to Reception, sign in, 
and at all times wear the Visitor badge issued.  Before leaving the building, please sign out and return the 
Visitor badge to Reception. 
Public seating in meeting rooms is limited. For further details contact Democratic Services on 03450 450 
500 or e-mail democratic.services@scambs.gov.uk 
 
Emergency and Evacuation 

In the event of a fire, a continuous alarm will sound.  Leave the building using the nearest escape route; 
from the Council Chamber or Mezzanine viewing gallery this would be via the staircase just outside the 
door.  Go to the assembly point at the far side of the staff car park opposite the staff  entrance 

 Do not use the lifts to leave the building.  If you are unable to use stairs by yourself, the 

emergency staircase landings have fire refuge areas, which give protection for a minimum of 1.5 
hours.  Press the alarm button and wait for help from Council fire wardens or the fire brigade. 

 Do not re-enter the building until the officer in charge or the fire brigade confirms that it is safe to 
do so. 

 
First Aid 

If you feel unwell or need first aid, please alert a member of staff. 
 
Access for People with Disabilities 

We are committed to improving, for all members of the community, access to our agendas and minutes. 
We try to take all circumstances into account but, if you have any specific needs, please let us know, and 
we will do what we can to help you.  All meeting rooms are accessible to wheelchair users.  There are 
disabled toilet facilities on each floor of the building.  Infra-red hearing assistance systems are available in 
the Council Chamber and viewing gallery. To use these, you must sit in sight of the infra-red transmitter 
and wear a ‘neck loop’, which can be used with a hearing aid switched to the ‘T’ position.  If your hearing 
aid does not have the ‘T’ position facility then earphones are also available and can be used 
independently. You can get both neck loops and earphones from Reception. 
 
Toilets 

Public toilets are available on each floor of the building next to the lifts. 
 
Recording of Business and Use of Mobile Phones 

We are open and transparent about how we make decisions. We allow recording, filming and photography 
at Council, Cabinet and other meetings, which members of the public can attend, so long as proceedings 
at the meeting are not disrupted.  We also allow the use of social media during meetings to bring Council 
issues to the attention of a wider audience.  To minimise disturbance to others attending the meeting, 
please switch your phone or other mobile device to silent / vibrate mode. 
 
Banners, Placards and similar items 

You are not allowed to bring into, or display at, any public meeting any banner, placard, poster or other 
similar item.  Failure to do so, will result in the Chairman suspending the meeting until such items are 
removed. 
 
Disturbance by Public 

If a member of the public interrupts proceedings at a meeting, the Chairman will warn the person 
concerned.  If they continue to interrupt, the Chairman will order their removal from the meeting room.  If 
there is a general disturbance in any part of the meeting room open to the public, the Chairman may call 
for that part to be cleared. The meeting will be suspended until order has been restored. 
 
Smoking 

Since 1 July 2008, South Cambridgeshire District Council has operated a Smoke Free Policy. No one is 
allowed to smoke at any time within the Council offices, or in the car park or other grounds forming part of 
those offices. 
 
Food and Drink 

Vending machines and a water dispenser are available on the ground floor near the lifts at the front of the 
building.  You are not allowed to bring food or drink into the meeting room. 

 

mailto:democratic.services@scambs.gov.uk


This page is left blank intentionally.



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Licensing Committee held on 
Wednesday, 17 October 2018 at 10.00 a.m. 

 
PRESENT:  Councillor Anna Bradnam – Chairman 
  Councillor Eileen Wilson – Vice-Chairman 
 
Councillors: Graham Cone Clare Delderfield 
 Jose Hales Bill Handley 
 Geoff Harvey Mark Howell 
 Steve Hunt Peter McDonald 
 Deborah Roberts Heather Williams 
 
Officers: Jennifer Holah Office Support Manager 
1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
 Councillors Hales, Howell and Williams each declared a non-pecuniary interests as 

licensees.  
  
2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
 The minutes of the meeting held on Monday 25 June 2018 were agreed as a correct 

record subject to the following amendments (amendments to wording shown in bold): 

 Minute 4: the Diocese of Ely, Muslim Council and Humanists had been consulted 
on previous occasions. 

 Minute 4: Three members voted against the inclusion in the list of persons/groups 
with which the Council would consult. The minutes had stated that two members 
had voted against this.  

  
3. REVIEW OF THE DRAFT STATEMENT OF GAMBLING ACT 2005 POLICY 
 
 The draft Statement of Gambling Act 2005 Policy was discussed.  

 
The comments made by Horningsea Parish Council in response to the consultation were 
noted. The committee was informed that in  the last ten years, the Council had received no 
complaints regarding raffles and draws. 
 
The following amendments to the policy statement were agreed by the committee: 

 The Equality and Diversity paragraph (paragraph 19 of the report) would be added to 
the policy statement. 

 In paragraph 1 (Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre gaming machine permits 
(Policy on Permits – Schedule 10 paragraph7)), vulnerable adults would be included 
with reference to those who should be protected from  harm. 

 Information explaining the categories of gaming machines would be added. 

 Typographical errors were highlighted in paragraph 3 ((Licensed) Family 
Entertainment Centres) of the policy statement.  
 

Subject to the agreed amendments, the Licensing Committee RECOMMENDED to full 
Council that the Gambling Act 2005 Policy Statement be adopted.  

  
4. REVIEW OF THE STATEMENT OF LICENSING (2003 ACT) POLICY 
 
 The draft Statement of Licensing (2003 Act) Policy was discussed. The following 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Licensing Committee 2 Wednesday, 17 October 2018 

amendments to the Policy were agreed: 

 The Equality and Diversity paragraph (paragraph 19 of the report) would be added to 
the policy statement.  

 Reference to the public consultation in the Executive Summary, would be removed. 

 Referring to 3.7(d)(i) Children in performances at paragraph (iii) Special effects, the 
wording ‘including but not limited to’ would be added. Chlorinated water would also be 
added to the list of examples.  

 Referring to  3.7(d)(i) Children in performances paragraph (iv) Care of Children, 
‘applying relevant safeguarding policies’ would be added.  

 
The committee noted Harston Parish Council’s consultation response which referred to 
the sale of alcohol at vehicle service stations. The sale of alcohol at service stations was 
discussed; members considered this was no different to driving to a shop to purchase 
alcohol. The committee was informed that the Council had received no complaints 
regarding anti-social behaviour at any petrol service stations.  
 
The committee noted the consultation response received from the Public Health 
Directorate. The Chairman requested officers checked the Directorate had no comments 
with regards to the Statement of Gambling Act 2005 Policy.  
 
After further discussion, the Licensing Committee RECOMMENDED to full Council that the 
revised Licensing (2003 Act) Policy statement be adopted, subject to the agreed 
amendments. 

  

  
The Meeting ended at 11.20 a.m. 

 

 

Page 2



 
 
  
REPORT TO: 
 

Licensing Committee 11 November 2019 

LEAD CABINET MEMBER: 
 

Lead Cabinet Member for Environmental Services & 
Licensing  
 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

Director of Housing, Health & Environmental Services  

 

 
 

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 
and Conditions 

 

Executive Summary 

1. Licensing Committee is requested to approve a new Taxi Licensing Policy for 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire vehicles, drivers, proprietor’s (vehicles) and 
operators following a public consultation. 

Key Decision - yes 

2. This is a key decision because it is significant in terms of its effects on communities 
throughout the district where taxi services are an integral part of the transport needs 
for rural areas. 

 
3. The key decision was first published in the October 2019 Forward Plan. 
 

Recommendations 

4. That Licensing Committee recommend to Full Council to approve and adopt the 
revised policy at Appendix A from 1st January 2020. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

5. In order to adopt any changes of policy or conditions there is a requirement to 
consider the views submitted from any consultation of those who may be affected 
either directly or indirectly from the changes proposed. 

 
6. This is a brand-new policy, updated to address the Council’s Business Plan 2019-

2024 and to increase protection of the public, improve air quality and support small 
local businesses.  There are significant changes to the layout of the policy, and it is 
recommended that the policy is viewed as a completely new document.   
 

7. The policy has been reviewed and updated to ensure complete legal compliance. 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



Details 

 
8. The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 Part II and the Town 

Police Clauses Act 1847 creates a statutory duty for Local Authorities to licence 
Private Hire and Hackney Carriage vehicles, drivers and operators.  In carrying out 
this function the Licensing Authority has a duty to ensure that public safety is 
paramount whether it is to prevent direct danger to the passenger from the driver of 
the vehicle or danger to the passenger and other members of society from the vehicle 
itself.  

 
9. Under current legislation the Licensing Authority has the powers to introduce policies 

and conditions that it considers reasonably necessary to provide a service that is 
accessible and safe and promotes the safety of the travelling public. Too restrictive 
an approach can work against the public interest and could have safety 
implications.by encouraging illegal operations or forcing the trade to licence 
elsewhere where conditions are less onerous, thereby losing regulatory control over 
drivers and vehicles working in our area. The provision of a service to the public 
should be accessible and safe. 
 

10. The consultation on the draft policy took place between 8th July to 23rd September 
2019 via consultation document on the website and sent out to key stakeholders.  
Additionally, a successful and very well-attended public and trade consultation event 
was undertaken in the Council Chamber on the 29th and 30th July 2019 with in excess 
of 150 people visiting over both days.  In total 54 consultation responses were 
received from individuals, businesses, Councillors, Cambridge City Council and trade 
associations on behalf of drivers and operators. 
 

11. A wide range of views have been submitted with a number of suggestions to be 
considered for any final policy. All consultations responses are attached as Appendix 
B.  A summary of all the responses collated into the relevant section are attached as 
Appendix C 

 
12. A Licensing Committee workshop was held to consider the comments made at the 

consultation, taking on board the views of the trade, officers and members. The policy 
at Appendix A reflects the consultation responses and member workshop views. 
 

13. All proposed changes to the policy are set out in Appendix C along with a summary of 
consultation comments.  Issues of particular note and consideration by Licensing 
Committee include: 

 

 CCTV in vehicles 

 Private Hire Vehicle Plate Exemption 

 Introduction of ultra-low and zero emission vehicles for all new vehicle 
licences from 2021 

 Introduction of ultra-low and zero emission vehicles for all renewed vehicle 
licences from 2028 

 Vehicle Age policy 
 
 
  

 
 
 

Page 4



CCTV 
 
14. There continues to be a number of concerns relating to CCTV with a strong 

resistance to its installation in plate exempt vehicles (chauffeur work) and also in 
relation to the cost being a barrier to entry. Officers have looked in to the overall cost 
of purchase and have come to an indicative price that meets the ICO (Information 
Commissioner Office) regulations at around £350 to £600. 
 

15. Licensing Committee has previously considered these issues as part of the adoption 
of the 2018 policy, further consultation with the trade has taken place as part of this 
process.  The policy at Appendix A proposes to implement the requirement for all 
vehicles (including plate exempt) to install CCTV to provide a consistent approach to 
safeguarding.  Operators and drivers of plate exempt vehicles delivering executive 
and chauffeur style business models are resisting installation of CCTV on the 
grounds of protecting the privacy of pre-booked contract-based clients.   
 

16. Members are asked to consider and agree a way forward on this matter. 
 
Plate Exemption Policy 
 

17. Particular responses made around plate exempt executive vehicles that from time 
undertake localised “normal” Private Hire work highlighting that whilst chauffer style 
work is the primary focus, there is still an occasional local need, particularly in rural 
areas where the transport network is reduced, to serve local people in a normal PH 
style which subject to approval has been reflected in the policy. 

18. The 2018 policy provides for plate exemption for vehicles engaged ‘primarily’ in 
executive/chauffeur-based work.  This enables plate exempt vehicles to undertake 
occasional non-plate-exempt private hire work.  As a result, applications for plate 
exempt vehicles has noticeably increased due to the ambiguity of this policy wording. 
The new policy at Appendix A replace the word ‘primarily’ with the word ’solely’ to 
clarify the grounds on which vehicles can be plate exempt.  However, this has the 
effect of preventing plate exempt vehicles from being used for occasional ‘typical’ 
private hire work.  Small operators and drivers are concerned that this means that 
they will lose money and be unable to provide occasional services to local residents 
which may keep their business trading.   
 

19. Possible solutions for this include operators having pre-signed contracts in place for 
regular but occasional local customers or maintaining at least one non-exempt 
vehicle.   
 
Introduction of ultra-low & zero emission vehicles for all new vehicle licences 
from 2021 

 
20. As part of the SCDC Business Plan ‘Green to the Core’ commitments, the new policy 

introduces a requirement for all new vehicles to be ultra-low or zero emission with 
effect from 1st October 2021.  This will have a significant impact on improving air 
quality across the district and Cambridge City. 
 

21. Everyone recognises the contribution this policy change will make to improving the 
health of residents and children.  Additionally, this policy change aligns South 
Cambridgeshire and Cambridge City providing consistency of approach for local 
businesses across the boundary.   
 
 

Page 5



22. However, concerns were raised that this policy is being introduced too quickly and 
that there are not enough charging points in South Cambridgeshire, there is only 
limited availability of expensive ultra-low or zero emission vehicle that are unsuitable 
for use as taxis due to their relatively low mileage range. 
 

23. For information Cambridge City Council has already introduced this policy but from 
April 2020.  Cambridge City recently consulted on changing this date to April 2021 but 
members have decided against this.  
 
Introduction of ultra-low & zero emission vehicles for all renewed vehicle 
licences from 2028 

 
24. Similarly, as part of the SCDC Business Plan ‘Green to the Core’ commitments, the 

new policy introduces a requirement for all renewed vehicles to be ultra-low or zero 
emission with effect from 1st October 2028.  This will allow current licence holders 
adequate time to plan for this change.  Again, this will have a significant impact on 
improving air quality across the district and Cambridge City. 

 
Vehicle Age Policy 
 

25. The vehicle age policy has been amended to encourage use of ultra-low and zero 
emission vehicles. 
 

26. The policy introduces an upper age limit of 7 years for the renewal of all other 
vehicles licences.  There have been many consultation comments requesting an 
extension to this age limit to allow current compliant vehicles to be fully utilised.  
 

27. It is proposed to increase this age limit from 7years to 9 years.  This will assist with 
current hire purchase agreements entered into by current proprietors and enable 
them to complete these agreements. 
 
Appeals against Officer Decisions 
 

28. The previous policy included provision for appeals against officer decisions to be 
heard by a Licensing Sub-committee.  This is not a legal requirement but has been an 
extra step introduced by South Cambridgeshire District Council, with associated extra 
costs of officer and committee time.  The new policy proposes to remove this route of 
appeal to licensing Sub-Committee and adopt the formal legal appeal route via 
Magistrates Court.  This will reduce costs to the Council and speculative appeals 
against officer decisions. 

 

Considerations 

 
29. In recommending the proposed draft policy and conditions, consideration has been 

given to the views of those that responded to the consultation, Department of 
Transport Best practise on Taxi & Private hire vehicle licensing, Local Government 
Association guidance, Institute of Licensing model convictions policy as well as 
policies currently in force with neighbouring authorities and the need to promote 
public safety.  In addition, the policy has been reviewed by a leading legal expert on 
taxi licensing law. 

 

Page 6



30. The adoption of a comprehensive policy alongside more specific conditions will allow 
the authority to maintain high standards throughout the trade and will set expectations 
of conduct both to existing licence holders and prospective license holders. The 
overarching aim of any policy or conditions is to ensure that protection of the 
travelling public is paramount in any decisions taken by this authority  

 
31. In preparing any policy, consideration must be given to the risks and benefits of 

adopting a policy that is too onerous to encourage take up by new applicants and 
existing trade. 

 
Benefits 
A strict policy and conditions will contribute to those people applying for and holding a 
licence with South Cambridgeshire District Council meeting stringent standards that 
will help contribute to a higher professional standard and safety of the travelling 
public. 

 
Risk 
A licensing policy and conditions that are too onerous may encourage the trade to go 
elsewhere where conditions are lower to obtain a licence and return to work in the 
South Cambridgeshire district. In such cases this authority would have no powers to 
enforce or regulate such activities. 
 
Setting entry standards that are disproportionate or too onerous may lead to persons 
deliberately operating illegally due to the difficulty and cost of being licensed against 
the risk of being caught and the possible fines imposed by any court. 

Options 

32. Members may agree one of the following options 

 Agree the proposed policy as recommended  

 Reject the proposed policy. 

 Amend the proposed policy.  

Implications 

33. In the writing of this report, taking into account financial, legal, staffing, risk 
management, equality and diversity, climate change, community safety and any other 
key issues, the following implications have been considered: - 
 
Financial 
 

34. There are no significant financial implications.  Taxi licensing remains chargeable on 
a cost recovery basis. 

 
Legal 

 
35. Any applicant for a licence or any existing licensee affected by a decision resulting 

from the introduction of new policies or conditions has a right of appeal to a Licensing 
sub-committee or a Magistrates Court  

 
 
 
 

Page 7



Staffing 
 
36. There are no significant implications 
 
 Risk Management 
 
37. There is a risk to the implementation of CCTV by the policy date.  This is due to 

continued uncertainty as to the date by which taxi CCTV standards will be 
implemented by the Information Commissioner’s Office.  If required Licensing 
Committee will be asked to review the implementation date. 
 

 Equality and Diversity 
 
38. An equalities impact assessment will be completed before the policy is considered for 

decision by Full Council. 
 
 Climate Change 
 
39. Promotion of environmentally friendly vehicles will contribute to the reduction of 

harmful gasses in the atmosphere. 
 

Consultation responses  
 
40. All existing licence holders were consulted seeking their written views and comments 

on the proposed changes. In addition we also sought views from:- 
 

(a)  Hackney Carriage drivers and proprietors 
(b)  Private Hire drivers and proprietors 
(c)  South Cambridgeshire Private Hire operators 

 South Cambridgeshire DC Councillors 
(d)  Parish Councillors 
(e)  Neighbouring authorities 
(f) General Public 

Effect on Council Priority Areas 

Growing local businesses and economies 

41. This policy supports local businesses in our villages by supporting local garages to 
undertake Certificate of Compliance tests twice a year on all licensed vehicles. 
 

42. Additionally, the policy requires operators to be based in the district.  This encourages 
local business opportunities. 

Housing that is truly affordable for everyone to live in 

43. This policy ensures that South Cambridgeshire residents have access to sufficient 
local transport options in our rural district 

Page 8



Being green to our core 

44. This new taxi licensing policy promotes improved air quality and reduces 
environmental impacts through the introduction of ultra-low and zero emission 
vehicles. 

Background Papers 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
Town Police Clauses Act 1847 
DFT Taxi & Private Hire Vehicle Licensing – best practise guidance 
Local Government Association Convictions guidance 

 

Appendices 

Appendix A: Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Policy 
Appendix B: Consultation Responses 
Appendix C: Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Policy Consultation Feedback Summary 
 
 

Report Author:  

Jen Holah: Corporate Licensing Manager 
Telephone: (01954) 713398 
Email: Jennifer.holah@scambs.gov.uk 
 

Page 9



This page is left blank intentionally.


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy and Conditions

